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[bookmark: _Toc433122976]Introduction

NHS England wishes to understand the effectiveness of talking therapy services commissioned to support people using sexual assault referral services (SAAS) in Bedfordshire and Hertfordshire. This will improve commissioners’ understanding of which services need further development and will inform future commissioning.
We are seeking to appoint an independent provider who can propose an appropriate way to evaluate the service, do the evaluation, provide answers to the questions given and make proposals as a consequence.
[bookmark: _Toc433122977]Background

In 2017, NHS England commissioned talking therapy services in the east of England for SAAS as a two year pilot. The service is intended to be provided as early as possible after the incident  or disclose of abuse, to provide support as soon as possible and prevent deterioration of mental health.  The service is intended for people who have relatively recent experience, rather than non-recent abuse, as it is noted that it is likely that there is a difference in the needs of these two types of experience.  The service which has been commissioned is limited to a specific number of sessions over a defined time period.  The service specification was developed by a person with extensive experience of working with survivors of sexual assault and abuse at a leading SAAS service over many years, but the purpose of evaluation of these two services is to understand  what changes to the service specification (if any) could be helpful as the pilot ends and future commissioning is planned.


[bookmark: _Toc433122978]Content and scope of report

The successful bidder must produce a report which answers the following questions:

1. How are survivors referred to the TT service in each county? Is the referral process acceptable to survivors? If not, what would improve the referral process?
 
1. How does take-up of the offer of the service vary between the two services? What percentage of survivors take up the offer in each service?  If there is variation between the take-up rates, can reasons for the variation be suggested, by staff working in the SARC and by survivors?       It will be necessary to ask survivors who don’t use the service, why they didn’t use it; the bidder needs to propose an acceptable, sensitive and confidential  way of asking this question and obtaining the answers - for example, could be by a post-back questionnaire, which is issued to service users by SAAS staff, and posted back (with anonymous responses).
 
1. What do survivors think about the service in each county? What do they like about it? What do they dislike about it? This needs to be by questionnaire, issued by TT service staff, and if possible by phone call follow-up.  A sample size relating to the number of new referrals over a 28 day period should be aimed for.
 
1. What do other workers within the SARC think of the service and its value to survivors?  What reasons do they have for these views? What would they change about the service, if anything? This needs to be obtained by interviewing  SARC staff including ISVAs and crisis workers. 
 
1. What other services do survivors access after using the SARC services?  What reasons do they have for accessing these services?  What are their experiences of using these services? This needs to be in the questionnaire completed by survivors and/or explored in phone calls. A sample size relating to the number of new referrals over a 28 day period should be aimed for.

1. How closely does each service comply with the service spec? 

1. Does the location of the service affect how survivors feel about it and whether they access it?  What about the accommodation – do survivors have any suggestions, for changes that could be made (care must be taken to manage expectations in this respect, so the author must ensure that the communication with survivors is about in the context of what is realistic)?
1. Any other comments which survivors and staff have in relation to the TT service.


The report needs to be structured in to 3 sections – one for the answers to the questions for the Beds service, one for the Herts service, and one section which compares and contrasts the responses for the two services, draws attention to significant differences and offers hypotheses for these.
[bookmark: _Toc433122979]

Deliverables

The provider of the report must provide both an initial draft and a final draft of the report in Word. This allows comments to be made within the text of the initial draft, and also allows extraction of the text from the final draft for insertion into other documents. The  final draft must be delivered to claire.weston2@nhs.net  in Word format by 15/11/ 2019 or earlier if possible.
[bookmark: _Toc433122980]
Timetable

The opportunity will be advertised to any potential provider in June 2019 and bids must be submitted by 17.00 on 19/7/2019 to emma.giles3@nhs.net .  NHS England will notify all bidders of the outcome within 2 weeks of this date. Bidders should request a receipt of their bid, and if this is not received by 17.00 on 21/7/19, they should contact  Emma Giles to request this.

The successful bidder must be in a position to begin work upon being appointed, and to complete the initial draft by 31/10/19. Comments will be provided within 1 week and a final draft should be provided by 15/11/19.
 
Bidders are expected to notify the commissioner of progress towards delivery of the initial and final drafts.

[bookmark: _Toc433122981]Price and Payment Terms

The maximum value of acceptable bids is £8 000 (net of VAT).  Any bid which does not clearly state the price for the report will be rejected.  In formulating the bid price, bidders are asked to show their daily rate, the number of days consumed in each element of the preparation of the report, and other non-pay costs.  There will be no payment above the bid price for any reason, if the bid is accepted.

Interested parties are requested to advise Commissioners of their fully inclusive price for undertaking the report to the specification set out in this document.   Should the report fail to fully meet the requirements of the service specification or deadline (unless due to factors outside of the Provider’s control) NHS England reserves the right to withhold up to 10% of the total contract value when paying the final invoice.  NHS England terms and condition will be applied.  No payment will be made for part completion of the report.
[bookmark: _Toc433122982]Evaluation and Scoring

a) Please submit a bid using the template completing each section.

b) Please provide details of similar evaluations which you have previously undertaken including the date completed, and be prepared to provide these documents to NHS England on request.

c) Please ensure that the bid to provide your report is the same name as the author of the report.  The purchase order will be raised in the name of the bidder and the invoice must correspond to the name on the purchase order and the bid.



Applications will evaluated and scored as follows:

Scoring Methodology
	0 
	The Provider is unable to fulfil the requirement or no response is received

	1
	The Provider is only able to partly fulfil the requirement

	2
	The Provider is able to fulfil the requirement

	3
	The Provider exceeds fulfilment of the requirement



	Quality – weighted at 60% of total score

	The Provider has demonstrated that:

	Review Deliverables
	1. All the objectives and products contained within the specification will be delivered.

	
	2. Comprehensive and suitable methodologies are proposed for all aspects of the evaluation, with the rationale for each. 

	
	3. A suitable methodology and rationale will be adopted to operate focus groups


	
	4. Project challenges have been identified and suitable mitigations proposed.

	Capability
	5. Experience of undertaking a similar piece of work, delivered to timescale

	
	6. The availability of suitably competent staff who have relevant experience

	
	7. An understanding and application of, data confidentiality and information governance issues.

	
	8. They can deliver the report within the project deadline with a realistic timetable.

	Price – Weighted at 40% of total score

	Price
	Price will be evaluated by the bid with the lowest score scoring 100 and all other bidder prices being expressed as an inverse proportion.

For example, where maximum value for an opportunity is £60 000
Bid A – Price  £30,000 = scores 100
Bid B – Price  £40,000 = scores 75
Bid C  - Price  £50,000 = scores 60
Bid D – Price  £60,000 = scores 50	



Checklist for bidders

This check list may be helpful in developing your bid but may not be exhaustive:

· Each bid states        ‘Evaluation of SAAS TT service + [bidder name]’       as a foot note on each page
· Each bid is page numbered
· Price for the bid has been provided, is net of VAT and is not subject to any proposed discounting.
· Each bid excludes the cost of making a presentation to NHS England on the findings
· Each bid states that the report will be delivered in Word.
· Each bid states the daily rate for the author and any associates  and the number of days consumed in each element of the task
· Each bid comes from the same organisation as the organisation which will submit the invoice for the report once complete, and the name of the invoicing organisation is clearly given._
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